
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MACON COUNTY BOARD OF HEALTH 
MINUTES 
7/23/2024 

 
Members: Garrett Higdon, Engineer; Paul Higdon, County Commissioner; Vacant, Optometrist; Dr. Roy Lenzo, 

Veterinarian; Vacant, Pharmacist; Dr. Matt Corbin, Dentist; Ellen Shope, Nurse Representative and Vice 
Chair; Dr. Michael Dupuis, Physician; Members of General Public, Jerry Hermanson Chair, Dr. Charlie 
Vargas; Vacant, General Member 

  
Members Absent: Paul Higdon, Dr. Roy Lenzo,  

  
Staff Present: Kathy McGaha, Jimmy Villiard, Jennifer Garrett, Melissa Setzer, Jeremy Pless, Kristina 

Loughborough 
  

Guests: None 
  

Media: 
 

Call to Order: 
 
 

Welcome/Intro/ 
Departures/ 
Recognition/ 

Announcements: 
 

 
Public Comment: 

 
 
 
 

Agenda Approval: 
 
 
 

Presentation: 
 

School Health 
EOY Report 

 

None 
 

Jerry Hermanson called the meeting to order at 6:17 p.m. 
 
 

Kathy McGaha, Health Director, shared some of the departures of employees that are leaving the 
Health Department:  Amanda Cowart, Jeremy Pless, Darlene Debty and April Blanton.  Jerry 

Hermanson asked about exit interviews.  And Kathy said yes we do exit interviews.  These are 
related to other opportunities, promotions and pay increases.   

 
 

None 
 
 
 

Dr. Michael Dupuis made a motion to approve the Agenda. Garrett Higdon seconded the motion. 
Motion passed unanimously. 

 
 
 

Jennifer Garrett, DON, Clinical Services Section Admin., shared her report on “Navigating the 
Evolving Landscape of School Health 22/23 vs. 23/24.” 

 
 



 
Presentation 
Continued… 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2nd 
Presentation: 

 

Healthy People, 
Healthy Carolinas 

– Food 
Insecurities 
Assessment 

Results 
(Mountainwise) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

There was some discussion at the conclusion of Jennifer’s report. 
 

Jerry Hermanson wondered why some of the data did not seem to match up.  Jennifer explained 
that kids come and go at school.  We can only report on what data we actually have.  We don’t 

have enough nurses to cover everything.  We have 4 nurses.  We have one position open.  So we 
can have 5 nurses.  Ideally it would be nice to have 11 school nurses, one for each school.  Kathy 

said that this info is what is provided to the state at the end of the year. 
 

Jennifer said now that COVID is over, the school system is once again coming back to be 
trained by Jennifer.  It had fallen by the way side during COVID. 

 
 

Dr. Charlie Vargas asked if Dogwood Trust had any say in what the school nurses do.  Jennifer 
said they had only given a very small amount of money and they pretty much do not. 

 
Dr. Matt Corbin asked about the Tele Health program that Julie Rogers is doing and if that is 

helping the situation.  Jennifer said that it is very helpful, but she can only do so much.  Jennifer 
did talk about the NC Health App that students can put on their phones. 

 
Dr. Michael Dupuis asked about the suicide prevention program.  Jennifer said we have a good 
relationship with Angel and they are doing a great job with this.  Also, we do meet with parents. 

 
Dr. Charlie Vargas asked about the Parents Bill of Rights.  Jennifer explained about how we 

have to inform the parents of actions. 
 

Garrett Higdon asked about the school nurses.  Jennifer said we have 4, with one position open.  
Ideally we need 11, one for each school. 

 
 

*************** 
 

 
 

Jimmy Villiard, Population Health Section Administrator, gave a presentation on the Macon 
County Community Food Assessment Results. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



 
Presentation 
Continued… 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 



Presentation 
Continued… 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 
Ellen Shope talked about on a positive note how now lunches for Macon County students will be free to 

certain ages. 
 



Presentation 
Continued… 

 
 
 
 
 

Approval of 
Previous Meeting 

Minutes: 
 

 
Old Business: 

 
FY25 Budget 

 
 
 
 
 

Animal Services 
Update 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Jennifer Garrett said seniors are the ones who tend to slip through the cracks with food insecurities.  We 
need to be more aware of them. 

 
On a positive note, Jimmy said that the Animal Services has started a Community Food Bank that has 

been very successful.  The food pantry give pet food to people in need to allow them to keep their pets, 
reducing shelter intakes and improving owner mental health.  We all need to really step up and do our 

part to help. 
 
 

Dr. Michael Dupuis made a motion to approve the Previous Meeting Minutes from 05/28/2024.  
Ellen Shope seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously. 

 
 

 
Melissa Setzer, Finance Officer, gave a report on the FY25 Budget.  She went over the Budget, 

explaining each line item that was handed out at the meeting and answered all questions 
concerning the Budget. 

 
 
 

Jimmy Villiard, Population Health Section Administrator, gave an Animal Services Update.  He 
discussed how the Animal Control Officers have had to take on more responsibility with the 

same staffing and salary, increasing work stress and contributing to high turnover rate for ACOs.  
It is a very difficult position.  It would be helpful if they could have more officers.  They do have 

one new Animal Control Officer starting on Monday that is filling a vacant position. 
 

 
 
 



 
New Business: 

 
FY25 Billing 

Guide and Fee 
Plan 

 
 
 

 
 
Approval of FY25 

Billing Guide: 
 
 

Board of Health 
Training Item: 

 
 
 

Approval of Going 
into Closed 

Session: 
 
 

Health Director 
Evaluation, 

Closed Session 
 
 
 

Next Meeting 
Date: 

 
 
 

Adjournment: 
 
 

Minutes Recorded 
by: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Melissa Setzer, Finance Officer, gave a report on the FY25 Billing Guide and Fee Plan that was 
handed out at the meeting.  She said that she will email the appendix to the BOH members.  
Travel Fees were raised when Dr. Allison Smith started as she was taking the place of what 

nurses used to do and spending much more time counseling the patient on what vaccines they 
made need.  Garrett Higdon said he had used that service and totally agreed with that 

assessment. 
 
 

Dr. Michael Dupuis made a motion to approve the FY25 Billing Guide.  Garrett Higdon seconded 
the motion. Motion passed unanimously. 

 
 

2024 NALBOH Annual Conference 
Nashville, TN 

August 12-14, 2024 
 
 

Jerry Hermanson made a motion to go into Closed Session at 7:56 p.m..  Garrett Higdon seconded 
the motion. Motion passed unanimously. 

 
 
 

Kathy McGaha, Health Director, stayed for this session.  All of the other MCPH staff was 
dismissed.  This was to discuss qualification of personnel as per NC General Statute 143-318.11 

(6). 
 
 
 

The next BOH meeting will be September 24, 2024.  (We will have general updates and 
emerging issues, etc.) 

 
 

 
Jerry Hermanson made a motion to go into adjourn the meeting at 8:40 p.m.  Dr. Michael Dupuis 

seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously. 
 

Kristina Loughborough  
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 


